
CITY OF MERRILL 

COMMON COUNCIL 

AGENDA ● TUESDAY APRIL 14, 2020 

 Regular Meeting City Hall Council Chambers 7:00 PM 

1. Call to Order 

2. Silent Prayer  

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

4. Roll Call 

5. Public Comment Period 

6. Minutes of previous Common Council meeting(s): 

1. Minutes of March 10, 2020 meeting   

7. Financial Reports: 

1. Revenue & Expense Report for the period ending March 31, 2020   

2. Review and discuss 2019 Room Tax Reports   

3. Fiscal Status Report - 2020 Capital   

8. General Agenda Items: 

1. Employee Years of Service Recognition:   

 Gregory D. Hartwig, 30 years (Police Department)   

9. Mayor's Proclamations: 

1. Declaration of a State of Emergency for the City of Merrill.   

2. Executive Declaration relating to City of Merrill Policy for employees with 
symptoms of or exposure of Novel Covid-19 Flu (Coronavirus).   

10. Board of Public Works: 

1. Lease agreement with Wisconsin Department of Administration for Wisconsin 
Department of Corrections (Probation and Parole) to lease space at City Hall.  
Mayor Woellner is bringing this amended agreement directly to the Common 
Council.  

11. Personnel and Finance Committee: 

1. Consider budget amendment to approve $70,000 for street lighting for the 
M2020-01 Grand Ave. project.  The Personnel and Finance Committee 
recommends approval.  

12. Placing Committee Reports on File: 

1. Place the following committee report(s) on file: Airport Commission, 
Committee of the Whole, Festival Grounds Committee, Library Board, Parks 
& Recreation Commission and Personnel & Finance Committee.   



Agenda Common Council Tuesday April 14, 2020 

13. Ordinances: 

 None.   

14. Resolutions: 

 None.   

15. Mayor's Communications 

16. Adjournment 

 

William N. Heideman, CMC, WCMC 
City Clerk 

 
The Merrill City Hall is accessible to the physically disadvantaged. If special accommodations are needed, 

please contact the Merrill City Hall at (715) 536-5594. 



6.1.a

Packet Pg. 3

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
0-

03
-1

0 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

49
03

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

M
ar

ch
 1

0,
 2

02
0 

m
ee

ti
n

g
)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 4

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 -

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

 (
49

04
 :

 R
ev

eu
n

e 
&

 E
xp

re
n

se
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 5

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 -

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

 (
49

04
 :

 R
ev

eu
n

e 
&

 E
xp

re
n

se
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 6

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 -

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

 (
49

04
 :

 R
ev

eu
n

e 
&

 E
xp

re
n

se
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 7

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 -

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

 (
49

04
 :

 R
ev

eu
n

e 
&

 E
xp

re
n

se
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 8

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 -

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

 (
49

04
 :

 R
ev

eu
n

e 
&

 E
xp

re
n

se
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 9

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 -

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

 (
49

04
 :

 R
ev

eu
n

e 
&

 E
xp

re
n

se
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 10

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 -

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

 (
49

04
 :

 R
ev

eu
n

e 
&

 E
xp

re
n

se
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 11

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 -

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

 (
49

04
 :

 R
ev

eu
n

e 
&

 E
xp

re
n

se
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 12

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 -

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

 (
49

04
 :

 R
ev

eu
n

e 
&

 E
xp

re
n

se
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 13

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 -

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

 (
49

04
 :

 R
ev

eu
n

e 
&

 E
xp

re
n

se
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 14

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 -

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

 (
49

04
 :

 R
ev

eu
n

e 
&

 E
xp

re
n

se
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 -

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

 (
49

04
 :

 R
ev

eu
n

e 
&

 E
xp

re
n

se
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 16

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 -

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

 (
49

04
 :

 R
ev

eu
n

e 
&

 E
xp

re
n

se
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 17

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 -

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

 (
49

04
 :

 R
ev

eu
n

e 
&

 E
xp

re
n

se
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 18

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 -

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

 (
49

04
 :

 R
ev

eu
n

e 
&

 E
xp

re
n

se
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 -

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

 (
49

04
 :

 R
ev

eu
n

e 
&

 E
xp

re
n

se
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 20

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 -

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

 (
49

04
 :

 R
ev

eu
n

e 
&

 E
xp

re
n

se
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 -

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

 (
49

04
 :

 R
ev

eu
n

e 
&

 E
xp

re
n

se
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 22

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 -

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

 (
49

04
 :

 R
ev

eu
n

e 
&

 E
xp

re
n

se
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 -

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

 (
49

04
 :

 R
ev

eu
n

e 
&

 E
xp

re
n

se
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 -

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

 (
49

04
 :

 R
ev

eu
n

e 
&

 E
xp

re
n

se
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 -

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

 (
49

04
 :

 R
ev

eu
n

e 
&

 E
xp

re
n

se
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 -

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

 (
49

04
 :

 R
ev

eu
n

e 
&

 E
xp

re
n

se
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 -

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

 (
49

04
 :

 R
ev

eu
n

e 
&

 E
xp

re
n

se
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 -

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

 (
49

04
 :

 R
ev

eu
n

e 
&

 E
xp

re
n

se
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 -

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

 (
49

04
 :

 R
ev

eu
n

e 
&

 E
xp

re
n

se
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 -

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

 (
49

04
 :

 R
ev

eu
n

e 
&

 E
xp

re
n

se
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 -

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

 (
49

04
 :

 R
ev

eu
n

e 
&

 E
xp

re
n

se
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 -

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

 (
49

04
 :

 R
ev

eu
n

e 
&

 E
xp

re
n

se
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 -

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

 (
49

04
 :

 R
ev

eu
n

e 
&

 E
xp

re
n

se
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 -

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

 (
49

04
 :

 R
ev

eu
n

e 
&

 E
xp

re
n

se
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 -

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

 (
49

04
 :

 R
ev

eu
n

e 
&

 E
xp

re
n

se
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 -

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

 (
49

04
 :

 R
ev

eu
n

e 
&

 E
xp

re
n

se
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 -

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

 (
49

04
 :

 R
ev

eu
n

e 
&

 E
xp

re
n

se
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 -

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

 (
49

04
 :

 R
ev

eu
n

e 
&

 E
xp

re
n

se
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 -

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

 (
49

04
 :

 R
ev

eu
n

e 
&

 E
xp

re
n

se
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 -

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

 (
49

04
 :

 R
ev

eu
n

e 
&

 E
xp

re
n

se
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 -

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

 (
49

04
 :

 R
ev

eu
n

e 
&

 E
xp

re
n

se
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 -

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

 (
49

04
 :

 R
ev

eu
n

e 
&

 E
xp

re
n

se
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 -

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

 (
49

04
 :

 R
ev

eu
n

e 
&

 E
xp

re
n

se
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

0)



7.2.a

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

o
o

m
 T

ax
-T

o
u

ri
sm

 2
01

9 
 (

49
02

 :
 R

ev
ie

w
 a

n
d

 d
is

cu
ss

 2
01

9 
R

o
o

m
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
s)



7.2.a

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

o
o

m
 T

ax
-T

o
u

ri
sm

 2
01

9 
 (

49
02

 :
 R

ev
ie

w
 a

n
d

 d
is

cu
ss

 2
01

9 
R

o
o

m
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
s)



7.2.a

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

o
o

m
 T

ax
-T

o
u

ri
sm

 2
01

9 
 (

49
02

 :
 R

ev
ie

w
 a

n
d

 d
is

cu
ss

 2
01

9 
R

o
o

m
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
s)



7.2.a

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

o
o

m
 T

ax
-T

o
u

ri
sm

 2
01

9 
 (

49
02

 :
 R

ev
ie

w
 a

n
d

 d
is

cu
ss

 2
01

9 
R

o
o

m
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
s)



7.2.a

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

o
o

m
 T

ax
-T

o
u

ri
sm

 2
01

9 
 (

49
02

 :
 R

ev
ie

w
 a

n
d

 d
is

cu
ss

 2
01

9 
R

o
o

m
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
s)



7.2.a

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

o
o

m
 T

ax
-T

o
u

ri
sm

 2
01

9 
 (

49
02

 :
 R

ev
ie

w
 a

n
d

 d
is

cu
ss

 2
01

9 
R

o
o

m
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
s)



7.2.a

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

o
o

m
 T

ax
-T

o
u

ri
sm

 2
01

9 
 (

49
02

 :
 R

ev
ie

w
 a

n
d

 d
is

cu
ss

 2
01

9 
R

o
o

m
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
s)



7.3.a

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

is
ca

l S
ta

tu
s 

- 
20

20
 C

ap
it

al
  (

49
09

 :
 F

is
ca

l S
ta

tu
s 

R
ep

o
rt

 -
 C

ap
it

al
)



7.3.a

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

is
ca

l S
ta

tu
s 

- 
20

20
 C

ap
it

al
  (

49
09

 :
 F

is
ca

l S
ta

tu
s 

R
ep

o
rt

 -
 C

ap
it

al
)



7.3.a

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

is
ca

l S
ta

tu
s 

- 
20

20
 C

ap
it

al
  (

49
09

 :
 F

is
ca

l S
ta

tu
s 

R
ep

o
rt

 -
 C

ap
it

al
)



7.3.a

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

is
ca

l S
ta

tu
s 

- 
20

20
 C

ap
it

al
  (

49
09

 :
 F

is
ca

l S
ta

tu
s 

R
ep

o
rt

 -
 C

ap
it

al
)



9.1.a

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 -
 S

ta
te

 o
f 

E
m

er
g

en
cy

  (
49

07
 :

 P
ro

cl
am

at
io

n
 o

n
 s

ta
te

 o
f 

em
er

g
en

cy
)



9.1.a

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 -
 S

ta
te

 o
f 

E
m

er
g

en
cy

  (
49

07
 :

 P
ro

cl
am

at
io

n
 o

n
 s

ta
te

 o
f 

em
er

g
en

cy
)



EXECUTIVE DECLARATION  
UNDER CITY OF MERRILL PROCLAMATION OF STATE OF EMERGENCY 

PURSUANT TO WIS. STAT. §323.14(4)(b) 

 
RELATING TO CITY OF MERRILL POLICY FOR EMPLOYEES WITH SYMPTOMS 

OR EXPOSURE OF NOVEL COVID-19 FLU (CORONAVIRUS) 
 

WHEREAS, on the 20
th

 day of March, 2020, the undersigned Mayor of Merrill proclaimed a 

State of Emergency pursuant to Wis. Stat. §§323.11 and 323.14(4)(b) (“Proclamation”); and 

 
WHEREAS, such Proclamation, among other things provides that it is necessary and expedient for 

the health, safety, and protection of the City to temporarily suspend or modify applicable ordinances or 

resolutions to allow immediate response to meet the needs of the extraordinary existing conditions for as 

long as the emergency public health emergency remains in effect in this state; and 

 
WHEREAS, the State of Wisconsin, Department of Health Services, under the authority of Wis. 

Stat. §252.02(3) and (6) and powers vested pursuant to Executive Order #72, and at the direction of 

Governor Tony Evers has issued Emergency Order #12 Safer at Home Order (“Safer at Home Order”) 

on March 24, 2020; and, 

 
WHEREAS, on March 18, 2020, Congress passed, and President Trump signed, the Families 

First Coronavirus Response Act (“FFCRA”); and, 

 
WHEREAS, the passage of the FFCRA and issuance of the Safer at Home Order, as well as 

other considerations important to the maintenance of municipal services to citizens and protection of 

City employees, require modifications to be made to the Original Policy, the undersigned hereby 

declares that the Original Policy is modified and superseded by the attached revised Policy for 

Employees with Symptoms or Exposure of Novel COVID-19 (Coronavirus). 

 

This declaration will be submitted to the Common Council for ratification at its next meeting. 
 

 

Dated this 6
th 

 day of April, 2020. 
 

     Issued and declared by: 
 
 
 
 

     Derek Woellner 

     Mayor of Merrill 

9.2.a

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 -
 E

m
p

lo
ye

e 
p

o
lic

y 
o

n
 C

o
vi

d
-1

9 
 (

49
08

 :
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 o
n

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

P
o

lic
y 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 C
O

V
ID

-1
9)



1  

CITY OF MERRILL 

POLICY FOR EMPLOYEES WITH SYMPTOMS OR EXPOSURE OF NOVEL COVID- 

19 (CORONAVIRUS) 
 

 

                                                                 Effective:  April 6, 2020 

 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 

The Centers for Disease Control is responding to an outbreak of respiratory disease caused by novel 

(new) coronavirus that has been named “SARS-CoV-2” and the disease it causes has been named 

“coronavirus disease 2019” (abbreviated “COVID-19”).  On January 30, 2020 the International Health 

Regulations Emergency Committee of the World Health Organization (WHO) declared the outbreak of 

COVID-19 a “public health emergency of international concern” (PHEIC).  On January 31, Health and 

Human Services declared a public health emergency (PHE) for the United States to aid the nation’s 

healthcare community in responding to COVID-19.  On March 11, the WHO characterized COVID-19 as 

a pandemic.  On March 13, the President of the United States declared the COVID-19 outbreak a national 

emergency. 

 
The City of Merrill will take appropriate measures to limit or slow any further spread of this disease in our 

workplace, schools and community.  People who are actively sick with COVID-19 can spread the illness 

to others; therefore it is important that employees with symptoms consistent with COVID-19 minimize 

their exposure to others.  This policy addresses employment considerations in relationship to the 

exclusion, either voluntary or mandatory, of City employees from employment based on possible COVID-

19. 

 
The City of Merrill is still determining the most effective way to respond to the developing COVID-19 

challenge.  The health and wellbeing of our employees and the citizens of Merrill are of utmost 

importance to the City.  The content of this policy may be revised by the City Administrator, with 

approval from the Mayor and/or Council as appropriate, as procedures and public health 

recommendations change.  City staff continues to monitor progress of federal legislation governing 

COVID-19 responses, and will continue to update this policy as needed. 

 
COVID-19 SYMPTOMS 

 

People who are sick with influenza-like illness (fever plus at least cough or shortness of breath) should stay 

home and minimize contact with others, including avoiding travel, for at least 72 hours after your fever is 

gone and at least 7 days have passed since symptoms first appear, except to get medical care or for other 

necessities.  (Your fever should be gone without the use of fever-reducing medicine.)  You can leave the 

home when you no longer have a fever, other symptoms have improved,  

 

Employees who exhibit influenza-like symptoms as described above, or suspect an exposure to someone 

suffering from COVID-19, are required to report that information to their Department Head before 

returning to work.  Suspected exposures should contact the Lincoln County Health Department at 715-

536 -0307 or your healthcare provider for guidance.

9.2.a

Packet Pg. 58

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 -
 E

m
p

lo
ye

e 
p

o
lic

y 
o

n
 C

o
vi

d
-1

9 
 (

49
08

 :
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 o
n

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

P
o

lic
y 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 C
O

V
ID

-1
9)



2  

PREVENTION 
 
The health of staff and the community is the highest priority within the City of Merrill.  As such, all 

employees are expected to follow CDC, Wisconsin Health Department and Lincoln County Health 

Department recommendations regarding the COVID-19 virus. 

 
Individuals have an important role in protecting themselves and their families. 
 

 

• Stay informed.  Health officials will provide additional information as it becomes 

available. 

• Employees should take these everyday steps to protect your health and lessen the spread of 

this new virus: 

 
o Cover your nose and mouth with a tissue when you cough or sneeze.  Throw the tissue 

in the trash after you use it. 

o Wash your hands often with soap and water for at least 20 seconds, especially after you  

      cough or sneeze. Alcohol-based hand cleaners are also effective and will be available in  

     your department. 

o Avoid touching your eyes, nose or mouth.  Germs spread this way. 
o Clean and disinfect high-touch surfaces in your home, and to the extent possible avoid 

touching high-touch surfaces in public places. 

o If you are sick, you may be sick for a week or longer.  You should stay home and keep 

away from others as much as possible, including avoiding travel and not going to work 

or school, for at least 72 hours after your fever is gone except to get medical care or for 

other necessities.  (Your fever should be gone without the use of over-the-counter fever-

reducing medicine.)  If you leave the house to seek medical care, call ahead and wear a 

facemask, if available and tolerable, and cover your coughs and sneezes with a tissue.  In 

general, you should avoid contact with other people as much as possible to keep from 

spreading your illness, especially people at increased risk of severe illness from 

influenza.  Stay in a specific “sick room” and limit contact with people and pets. 

o Employees are expected to follow the CDC prevention guidelines found at 

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/hcp/guidance-prevent-spread.html and 

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/php/risk-assessment.html 

o For more information, visit the CDC website at https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus 

 

As a prevention technique, the CDC recommends that individuals perform routine environmental 

cleaning. 

 
• Routinely clean all frequently touched surfaces in the workplace, such as workstations, 

countertops, and doorknobs. Use the cleaning agents that are usually used in these areas and 

follow the directions on the label. 

• No additional disinfection beyond routine cleaning is recommended at this time. 

• Provide disposable wipes so that commonly used surfaces (for example, doorknobs, 

keyboards, remote controls, desks) can be wiped down by employees before each use. 

 

All departments are strongly encouraged to establish appropriate in-house environmental cleaning 

procedures. 

9.2.a

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 -
 E

m
p

lo
ye

e 
p

o
lic

y 
o

n
 C

o
vi

d
-1

9 
 (

49
08

 :
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 o
n

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

P
o

lic
y 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 C
O

V
ID

-1
9)

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/hcp/guidance-prevent-spread.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/php/risk-assessment.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/if-you-are-sick/steps-when-sick.html?CDC_AA_refVal=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.cdc.gov%2Fcoronavirus%2F2019-ncov%2Fabout%2Fsteps-when-sick.html


3  

GOVERNOR’S STAY AT HOME ORDER 
On Tuesday, March 24, 2020 Governor Evers issued a Safer at Home order, to be effective from 
March 25, 2020 until Friday, April 24, 2020.  Under this order, individuals are ordered to stay at home 

or place of residence, although individuals may leave their home or residence to perform essential 

activities of daily living.  The order goes on to state that individuals may leave their homes or 

residences to perform essential government functions. 

 
To comply with this order, the City of Merrill designated all employees based on operational need into 

three categories: 

 
1.   Required employees:  Required employees are critical to business operations and must 

report to work or work in the field to perform their required duties.  These employees may 

be required to report on a modified schedule according to department needs. 

 
2.   Required remote employees:  Required remote employees are critical to business operations 

but can perform all or part of their duties remotely.  Those employees are required to follow 

the guidance under “Alternate Work Arrangements and Telecommuting” below. 

 
3.   Non-required employees:  Non-required employees shall not report to work unless 

instructed to do so by their Department Head. All employees on salary continuation are 

“on-call” at the discretion of their Department Head. 

 
Any employee may be re-designated as the COVID-19 virus continues to impact the City’s 

operations.  Also, employees may be assigned to perform essential work in other units for which they 

may be qualified and/or can safely perform the work.  If an employee is reassigned to perform other 

essential work, they will continue to be paid according to their regular pay rate. Reasonable 

exemptions from reassignment based on high-risk status may apply, as determined by the Mayor or 

City Administrator.  An employee who fails to report during his/her regular work hours, or refuses a 

work reassignment, may be subject to discipline up to and including discharge, and will not be 

eligible for pay during the time period where work was offered and available. 
 

The City of Merrill issues the following guidance in response to the Safer at Home order: 

• Employees shall suspend any non-essential meetings, or replace with virtual meetings. 

• Whenever possible, ridership in City vehicles shall be limited to one person.  This may 

require temporary reassignment of City vehicles. 

• All City equipment and work places shall be sanitized by the operator/employee at the start 

of each shift. 

• Lunch or break room access is restricted to food storage and food prep wherever possible. 

If not possible, the space shall be sanitized frequently and employees must practice 

appropriate social distancing protocol. 
 

TELECOMMUTING 
 
In an effort to slow the transmission of the disease, and in response to hardships developing from 

school closures, employees may request permission to work from home.  Normally, these arrangements 

are heavily restricted.  However, in response to the Governor’s Safer at Home order, departments 

9.2.a

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 -
 E

m
p

lo
ye

e 
p

o
lic

y 
o

n
 C

o
vi

d
-1

9 
 (

49
08

 :
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 o
n

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

P
o

lic
y 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 C
O

V
ID

-1
9)



4  

that are able to have employees work from home are authorized to do so. This accommodation will not 

be possible for all employees, and may only be possible for a limited number of employees.  The 

Department Head must determine what is appropriate for each individual situation.  Department Heads 

should work with our IT Manager to ensure that telecommuting options are possible with the current 

technology available to the City, and that proper information security protocols are observed.  

Employees who are granted a telecommuting accommodation under this policy should be aware that 

this accommodation is temporary in nature, and may be revoked by the City.  All telework 

accommodations granted under this policy will end when public health conditions related to the 

COVID-19 virus no longer require these extraordinary measures. City-owned equipment remains the 

property of the City of Merrill and must be returned to the workplace at the end of the temporary 

telecommunicating assignment. 

 
Barring authorization from the Mayor, City Administrator, or Council, all departments are expected 

to maintain service to the citizens of Merrill.  Any decisions related to closure of departments or 

services require the approval of the Mayor, City Administrator, or action by the Common Council. 

Salary continuation is subject to change by Common Council action. 

 
ALTERNATE WORK ARRANGEMENTS 
 
Another effort to slow the transmission of the disease is alternate work arrangements. Department 

Heads may establish schedules designed to limit employee contact, and to attempt to preserve the 

health of employees as required to maintain department operations.  All alternate work schedules must 

be approved by the Mayor or City Administrator, in writing, prior to implementation. 

 
If an employee is assigned a reduced or altered schedule because of the emergency, that employee shall 

be guaranteed 100% of their normal bi-weekly base pay (see below for the exclusions to this guarantee.) 

Payroll or the Finance Director should be contacted to the appropriate pay codes.  

 
Salary continuation for alternate work schedules does NOT guarantee that an employee under quarantine 

order, out sick, or caring for a covered relative will maintain 100% pay.  Employees will not maintain 

their current salary if the City of Merrill institutes a furlough or layoff. This policy only guarantees 

continued pay if a Department Head reduces an employee’s schedule based on the needs of the City, and 

does not prohibit the City from amending or ending this guarantee based on future needs. 
 

Alternate work arrangements resulting in lost time, and any pay practices affected or changed by an 

alternate work arrangement must be approved by the Mayor or City Administrator prior to 

implementation and are subject to change. 
 

TRAVEL RESTRICTIONS AND POST-TRAVEL QUARANTINE 
 
The City of Merrill is restricting all work travel to locations with widespread or ongoing community 

spread of COVID-19, and is prohibiting all non-essential work travel outside of Lincoln County.  

Employees are required to report all out-of-state work and non-work travel to their Department Head 

before their date of departure. 

 

The CDC has issued travel guidelines and recommendations regarding travel on their website at 

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/travelers/index.html.  The City of Merrill is requiring 

employees follow CDC, Wisconsin Health Department, and Lincoln County Health Department 

recommended guidelines for quarantine after travel.  In other words, if you travel to an area where the

9.2.a

Packet Pg. 61

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 -
 E

m
p

lo
ye

e 
p

o
lic

y 
o

n
 C

o
vi

d
-1

9 
 (

49
08

 :
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 o
n

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

P
o

lic
y 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 C
O

V
ID

-1
9)

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/travelers/index.html


5  

CDC, Wisconsin Health Department or Lincoln County Health Department is recommending a 14 day 

quarantine, the City of Merrill will not allow you to return to work until 14 days after your return.  As 

of March 17, 2020, the CDC and Wisconsin Health Department are recommending a 14 day 

quarantine after travel to a country with a Level 3 Travel notice 

(https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/travelers/after-travel- precautions.html) or states with 

sustained community transmission (https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/cases-updates/cases-

in-us.html. 
 
Effective April 1, 2020, an employee subject to quarantine after travel may be eligible for protection 

and pay under the Families First Coronavirus Response Act. 
 

EXCLUSION FROM THE WORK PLACE 
 
The City of Merrill will take appropriate action to prevent, suppress and control COVID-19 and other 

communicable diseases.  In order to maintain a safe work environment, the City of Merrill may exclude 

certain employees from the work place if they are experiencing symptoms similar to COVID-19.  The 

City of Merrill may also exclude employees from the work place if they are subject to a quarantine 

order by a local, state or federal health official. Employees should first be given the opportunity to 

voluntarily leave the workplace and utilize sick or other paid leave balances.  If the employee refuses, 

the City will then exclude him/her from the work place. Leave under the FFCRA may be utilized if 

available, otherwise other accrued leave must be used. 

 
Individuals who are excluded from the work place under this protocol will be directed to go home 

and will not be allowed to return to their worksite until one of the following conditions is met: 

 
• At least 72 hours after his/her fever is gone has elapsed, other symptoms have improved, and at 

least 7 days have passed since symptoms first appeared. (Employee fever should be gone 

without the use of fever-reducing medicine.) 

• Fever is gone (without use of fever-reducing medicine), other symptoms have improved, and 

receipt of two negative tests in a row 24 hours apart. 

• A medical provider or a local, state, or federal health official or their representative has 

declared the employee may return to work in writing. 
 

The CDC provides guidance regarding return-to-work requirements at 

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/healthcare-facilities/hcp-return-work.html. 

 

No disciplinary action will result from an employee’s use of sick leave based on this exclusion. 

Employees who are excluded from the work place are eligible to use sick leave for the period of 

exclusion, and may be eligible for Emergency Paid Sick Leave or Emergency Responder Sick Leave.   

 

LEAVE BENEFITS 
 
SICK LEAVE:  The City of Merrill has a generous sick leave policy already in place to protect 

employees who need to miss work due to illness.  An employee may use sick leave when, due to 

sickness or temporary disability, the employee is unable to perform the duties of employment. 

Employees may also use sick leave to attend medical appointments, and to care for a member of his/her 

family’s serious health condition.  This policy temporarily adjusts sick leave requirements so that an

9.2.a

Packet Pg. 62

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 -
 E

m
p

lo
ye

e 
p

o
lic

y 
o

n
 C

o
vi

d
-1

9 
 (

49
08

 :
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 o
n

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

P
o

lic
y 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 C
O

V
ID

-1
9)

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/travelers/after-travel-precautions.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/travelers/after-travel-precautions.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/cases-updates/cases-in-us.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/cases-updates/cases-in-us.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/healthcare-facilities/hcp-return-work.html


6  

employee under a “recommended quarantine” (per CDC and Health department guidelines) is eligible to 

use sick leave for the quarantine period, even if the employee is asymptomatic, except as established 

under “Travel Restrictions and Post-Travel Quarantine” above.  Please see the policy below for 

information on the Emergency Paid Sick Leave benefit under the FFCRA and the Emergency 

Responder Paid Sick Leave benefit. 
 

FMLA:  Seasonal flu and colds do not normally qualify for FMLA; however, depending upon the 

severity of symptoms and complications an employee may be eligible for FMLA because of a COVID-

19 illness, or to care for a family member suffering from COVID-19.  The Families First Coronavirus 

Response Act has also temporarily expanded FMLA coverage.  If you think you may be eligible for 

FMLA, or for more information on FMLA benefits, please contact Payroll. 

 
UNPAID LEAVES OF ABSENCE:  Employees may request leave without pay.  Leaves shall 

not exceed 30 days without approval by the City Administrator. During an unpaid leave of absence 

longer than 5 days, no benefits shall accrue.  Participation in group insurance plans can be maintained 

provided the employee pays the full cost. 

 

FAMILIES FIRST CORONAVIRUS RESPONSE ACT 
 
On March 18, 2020 President Trump signed the Families First Coronavirus Response Act (FFCRA) into 

law.  This law is effective April 1, 2020 and ends no later than December 31, 2020.  The law provided: 

 
1.   Emergency Paid Sick Leave  

2.   Emergency Family and Medical Leave Act Expansion 

 

These are separate and distinct benefits, but they may overlap.  For example, an employee may be 

able to use Emergency Paid Sick Leave during the first two weeks of his/her Emergency FMLA. 

 
Note:  If the City of Merrill institutes a furlough or layoff, affected employees are not eligible for 

Emergency Paid Sick Leave or Emergency Family and Medical Leave Act Expansion coverage. 

 
Under the FFCRA, an employer may exclude emergency responders from coverage.  The Department 

of Labor has stated, “For the purposes of employees who may be excluded from paid sick leave or 

expanded family and medical leave by their employer under the FFCRA, an emergency responder is an 

employee who is necessary for the provision of transport, care, health care, comfort, and nutrition of 

such patients, or whose services are otherwise needed to limit the spread of COVID-19. This includes 

but is not limited to military or national guard, law enforcement officers, correctional institution 

personnel, fire fighters, emergency medical services personnel, physicians, nurses, public health 

personnel, emergency medical technicians, paramedics, emergency management personnel, 911 

operators, public works personnel, and persons with skills or training in operating specialized 

equipment or other skills needed to provide aid in a declared emergency as well as individuals who 

work for such facilities employing these individuals and whose work is necessary to maintain the 

operation of the facility. This also includes any individual that the highest official of a state or territory, 

including the District of Columbia, determines is an emergency responder necessary for that state’s or 

territory’s or the District of Columbia’s response to COVID-19.” 

 

Following this guidance from the Department of Labor, the City of Merrill is excluding employees 

who are responsible for responding to medical, fire, and police emergencies, as well as those 

9.2.a

Packet Pg. 63

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 -
 E

m
p

lo
ye

e 
p

o
lic

y 
o

n
 C

o
vi

d
-1

9 
 (

49
08

 :
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 o
n

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

P
o

lic
y 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 C
O

V
ID

-1
9)



7  

employees necessary to respond to public health emergencies related to the City’s water, wastewater 

and streets infrastructure, as well as garbage/recycle collection.  The following is a list of employees 

currently considered as emergency responders (the City may revise this list as needed as the COVID-

19 emergency continues): 

 

• All Fire and Police personnel 

• All Wastewater and Water staff required to maintain and operate facilities 

• All Street Department staff required to maintain infrastructure and equipment, and staff 

required to collect garbage/recycle 

 

EMERGENCY PAID SICK LEAVE 
 
Emergency paid sick leave may be used when an employee is unable to work for one of the following 

reasons: 

 
Self-care 

1.   The employee is subject to a federal, state, or local quarantine or isolation order related to 

COVID-19. 

2.   The employee has been advised by a healthcare provider to self-quarantine due to 

concerns related to COVID-19. 

3.   The employee is experiencing COVID-19 symptoms and is seeking a medical diagnosis.  

Care of Others 

4.   The employee is caring for an individual who is subject to an order described above, or has 

been advised to self-quarantine as described above. 

5.   The employee is caring for his/her child (as defined by the FMLA) because the child’s school 

or place of care has been closed or is unavailable due to COVID-19 precautions. 

6.   The employee is experiencing any other substantially similar condition specified by the Secretary 

of Health and Human Services in consultation with the Secretary of the Treasury and the 

Secretary of Labor. 

 
Full-time employees receive 80 hours of Emergency Paid Sick Leave, or VTO, and part-time employees 

receive Emergency Paid Sick Leave equivalent to the number of hours that employee would work on 

average over a two-week period.  Emergency Paid Sick Leave is paid at 100% the employee’s regular rate 

of pay up to $511/day and $5,110 total for reasons included under “self-care.” Emergency Paid Sick 

leave is paid at 2/3 of an employees’ regular rate of pay up to $200/day and $2,000 total for reasons 

included under “care of others.” Employees may elect to utilize accrued leave to make up the 1/3 

difference in pay. 

 
Note:  If telecommuting work is available and offered, an employee is not eligible for pay under this 

section of the FFCRA. 

 

EMERGENCY FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE ACT 

 

The FFCRA also temporarily expanded employees FMLA rights and benefits.  Effective April 1, 

2020 and ending no later than December 31, 2020, all employees with at least 30 days of 

employment are covered by the Emergency Family Medical Leave Act. 

9.2.a

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 -
 E

m
p

lo
ye

e 
p

o
lic

y 
o

n
 C

o
vi

d
-1

9 
 (

49
08

 :
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 o
n

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

P
o

lic
y 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 C
O

V
ID

-1
9)



8  

Emergency Family Medical Leave can be used when the employee is unable to work in order to care 

for his/her son/daughter (as defined by the Family Medical Leave Act) who is under 18 years of age 

if the child’s school or place of care has been closed or is unavailable due to COVID-19 precautions.  

The employee must provide notice of leave to the City of Merrill as soon as practicable. 

 
The FFCRA did not expand the amount of leave provided under FMLA.  The normal 12 week FMLA 

leave limit applies. 

 

The first 10 days of leave under the Emergency Family Medical Leave Act is unpaid.  An employee can 

elect to use paid leave including vacation, personal, sick leave or Emergency Sick Leave during the first 

ten days of leave.  All subsequent days of Emergency Leave under the FMLA is paid at 2/3 or the 

employee’s normal regular rate for the number of hours the employee would otherwise have worked, up 

to $200 per day and a $10,000 maximum. Employees may elect to utilize accrued leave to make up the 

1/3 difference in pay. 

 
WORKERS COMPENSATION 
 

Exposure to COVID-19 that arose from the employee’s work may be eligible for Worker’s 

Compensation.  However, to be eligible for Worker’s Compensation the exposure must be proven to 

have occurred while the employee was performing work.  Employees who believe their exposure to 

COVID-19 is eligible for Worker’s Compensation should follow established Worker’s Compensation 

policies and procedures. 

9.2.a

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 -
 E

m
p

lo
ye

e 
p

o
lic

y 
o

n
 C

o
vi

d
-1

9 
 (

49
08

 :
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 o
n

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

P
o

lic
y 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 C
O

V
ID

-1
9)



9  

 
 

CITY OF MERRILL 

EXCLUSION FROM THE WORK PLACE NOTIFICATION 

(EFWPF) FITNESS FOR DUTY/RETURN TO WORK MEDICAL 

RELEASE COVID-19 (Coronavirus) 

 
Instructions: This form is to be used when Merrill City employees are excluded from the work 

place in accordance with the aforementioned policy. 

 
This section to be completed by Department Head or Authorized Designee 
In accordance with the City of Merrill Policy for Employees with Symptoms or Exposure of 

COVID-19 Flu (Coronavirus). 
 

 
 
 

 
(Employee Name) 

has been excluded from employment 

 

Effective a.m./p.m. on , , 2020 
(Time) (Day) (Month) (Date) 

 

 
 

Individuals who are excluded from the work place under this protocol will be directed to go 

home and will not be allowed to return to work until either: 

 
• At least 72 hours after his/her fever is gone has elapsed, other symptoms have improved, 

and at least 7 days have passed since symptoms first appeared. (Employee fever should be 

gone without the use of fever-reducing medicine.) 

• Fever is gone (without use of fever-reducing medicine), other symptoms have improved, 

and receipt of two negative tests in a row 24 hours apart. 

• A medical provider or a local, state, or federal health official or their representative has 

declared the employee may return to work. 
 

 
 

Employees will be expected to return to work as soon as the exclusion period ends.  Employees 

requesting additional time off once the exclusion period ends must follow the City’s leave rules 

and policies. 
 
 
 
 

(Department) (Signature of Department Head or Authorized Designee) 

9.2.a

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 -
 E

m
p

lo
ye

e 
p

o
lic

y 
o

n
 C

o
vi

d
-1

9 
 (

49
08

 :
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 o
n

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

P
o

lic
y 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 C
O

V
ID

-1
9)



10  

CORONAVIRUS DISEASE 2019 (COVID-19) SCREENING TOOL 

FOR CITY OF MERRILL EMPLOYEES 
 
 
The symptoms of COVID-19 include fever, cough, and shortness of breath.  For most people, the 

immediate risk of becoming seriously ill from the virus that causes COVID-19 is thought to be 

low.  Older adults and people of any age with underlying health conditions, such as diabetes, 

lung disease, or heart disease, are at greater risk of severe illness from COVID-19.  Use the 

following checklist or the CDC website at https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019- 

ncov/symptoms-testing/symptoms.html to help decide if you or someone in your family may 

have COVID-19: 
 

□ Yes  □ No Do you have a fever of 100.4° F or greater using an oral thermometer? 
 

□ Yes  □ No Do you have a cough? 
 

□ Yes  □ No Do you have shortness of breath? 

Seek medical advice if you 

• Develop any of the above symptoms 
 

AND 
 

• Have been in close contact with a person known to have COVID-19 or live in or have 

recently traveled from an area with ongoing spread of COVID-19.  Call ahead before you 

go to a doctor’s office or emergency room.  Tell them about your recent travel and your 

symptoms. 
 

 
 

SHOULD I STAY HOME FROM WORK? 
 

If you checked yes to a fever you should stay home at least 72 hours after your fever and any 

other symptoms are gone. People with COVID-19 should stay home until 72 hours after your 

fever is gone, other symptoms have improved, and seven days have passed since symptoms 

first appeared.  Your fever and other symptoms should be gone without the use of fever- 

reducing or other symptom-altering medicines (e.g. cough suppressants).  During this time: 
 

• Stay home except to get medical care, if needed 

• Avoid public areas 

• Avoid public transportation 

• Stay away from others 

• Limit contact with pets & animals 
 

If you think you have been exposed to COVID-19 and develop a fever and symptoms, such as 

coughing and difficulty breathing, call your healthcare provider for medical advice. 

9.2.a

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 -
 E

m
p

lo
ye

e 
p

o
lic

y 
o

n
 C

o
vi

d
-1

9 
 (

49
08

 :
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 o
n

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

P
o

lic
y 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 C
O

V
ID

-1
9)

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/symptoms-testing/symptoms.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/symptoms-testing/symptoms.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/symptoms-testing/symptoms.html


11  

 
 

                                                                     CITY OF MERRILL 

     COVID-19 APPLICATION FOR LEAVE OF ABSENCE FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT (FMLA) 
 
 
 

TO ENSURE CONFIDENTIALITY 

COMPLETE THIS FORM AND RETURN DIRECTLY TO THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

 
Name:     Date:     

 
Current Address:    

 
Department:     Location:     

 
Supervisor Name:     _ Supervisor Phone Number:   _ 

 
Position/Job Title:     Date of Hire:     

 
Expected Leave Start Date:    _ Expected Return Date:     

 

Reason for Leave:  
 

 Self      Spouse/Domestic Partner      Child (DOB:   _)      Parent        Other 
 

Name:     
 

Relationship to employee:    
 

Please state the reason:     
 

 
 

  Employee caring for someone in quarantine. 
 

  Employee caring for their son or daughter due to school/daycare COVID-19 related closure. 
 

          Employee experiencing “any other substantially similar condition specified by the Secretary of Health and 

                        Human Services”. 
 

          Employee’s own COVID-19-related quarantine order from local/state/federal government. 
 

          Employee’s own COVID-19- related self-quarantine recommended by health care provider. 
 

          Employee has COVID-19 symptoms and is seeking a medical diagnosis. 
 

          Other (please explain):   _ 
 

While I am on leave, I would like to substitute the following paid time provided by the City. 
 

Please circle your choice:   Sick Leave (City) Vacation (City) Emergency Paid Sick Leave (if available) 
                                                 Personal      Holiday      Comp. 

 
          Leave based on the serious health condition of the employee or employee’s qualified family member will require   

              completion of a medical certification form by the attending Health Care Provider. 
 

* Wisconsin leave is allowed for same-sex and opposite-sex domestic partners who qualify under Wisconsin law. 
 

  _   _ 
 

Employee Name (Print) Employee Signature Date 

9.2.a

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 -
 E

m
p

lo
ye

e 
p

o
lic

y 
o

n
 C

o
vi

d
-1

9 
 (

49
08

 :
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 o
n

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

P
o

lic
y 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 C
O

V
ID

-1
9)



12  

 

CITY OF MERRILL FOR EMPLOYEES WITH SYMPTOMS OR EXPOSURE OF COVID-19 

(CORONAVIRUS) 

FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS (FAQ) March 16, 

2020 

 
1.   How do I know if an employee needs to be excluded from employment? 

 
An employee should be excluded from the workplace if he/she meets any one of the following: 

 is currently experiencing symptoms consistent with COVID-19 (Coronavirus) as defined 

by the CDC 

 is diagnosed by a healthcare provider as having COVID-19 

 
2.    What do I do if an employee needs to be excluded from the work place? 

 
Supervisors should use prudent judgement when considering excluding an employee from work.  

Please read and familiarize yourself with the COVID-19 symptoms.  CDC guidelines on COVID-19 

can be found at https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019- ncov/symptoms-testing/symptoms.html. 
 

Supervisors who have concerns or questions about employees must consult with the City 

Administrator or a Lincoln County Health Department Representative before considering sending the 

employee home and excluding him/her from the workplace.  If, after careful consideration and 

consultation, it is determined that the employee should be excluded from the work place, the 

Department Head or authorized designee should complete the Exclusion from the Work Place 

Notification Form (EFWPF) and give a copy to the employee.  The original EFWPF should be 

provided to the City Administrator and placed in the employee medical file.  Explain to the employee 

that he/she is being excluded from employment until he/she meets the criteria to be allowed to return. 

 
3.   What if the employee calls in sick, or voluntarily goes home because he/she suspects 

COVID-19? 

 
The employee can go/stay home if he/she has the symptoms.  The employee may use sick or other paid 

leave and should follow all departmental leave rules and policies. 

 
Perfect Attendance Leave eligibility will not be affected by absences resulting from exclusion from 

employment or consistent with COVID-19 symptoms.  In order to avoid PAL ineligibility, the 

employee and their supervisor must certify to HR that the sick leave usage met the above criteria. 

The employee may also be eligible for Emergency Paid Sick Leave or Emergency Responder Sick 

Leave, or Emergency FMLA expansion coverage.  Please complete the COVID-19 Application for 

Leave of Absence and Payroll will guide you through the process. 
 

4.   What if an employee calls in sick, or voluntarily goes home, and claims the illness is something 

other than COVID-19 (i.e back spasms, migraines, asthma attack, etc.)? 

 
Do not assume that every employee who calls in sick has symptoms of COVID-19.  If, when he/she 

reports back to work, he/she displays symptoms consistent with COVID-19, the protocol for exclusion 

should then be followed.

9.2.a

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 -
 E

m
p

lo
ye

e 
p

o
lic

y 
o

n
 C

o
vi

d
-1

9 
 (

49
08

 :
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 o
n

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

P
o

lic
y 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 C
O

V
ID

-1
9)

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/symptoms-testing/symptoms.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/symptoms-testing/symptoms.html


13 

 

 

All City and departmental policies and procedures regarding requesting and receiving approval for 

sick leave will apply.  Most call- in policies should require that the employee speak directly with the 

supervisor or designated person and provide a general description of their illness. 

 
Employees absent for reasons unrelated to COVID-19 must follow standard policies and procedures. 

 
5.   What do I do when an employee says that someone in their family, or living in their 

household, has COVID-19? 

 
You should call 715-536-0307 and consult with someone from the Lincoln County Health 

Department. 

 
If your employee is requesting an absence to care for a family member who has been diagnosed with 

a confirmed or presumptive case of COVID-19, all City and departmental policies and procedures 

regarding requesting and receiving approval for sick leave will apply.  Per City policy, an employee 

may use sick leave for a member of his/her family’s serious health condition, where the serious 

health condition is certifiable under FMLA or where the immediate family member requires the 

constant attention of the employee. Immediate family is defined as the employee’s spouse, child, 

parent or relative living in the same household as the employee. 

 
6.   What do I tell other employees when someone has been excluded? 

 
Supervisors should never discuss an employee’s health with any other employee.  If other employees 

ask, you should simply state, “Just as I don’t discuss your health status with other employees, I am 

not going to discuss his/hers with you.  The employee (name) is out on leave.” If employees are 

expressing concern about their own health safety, you should tell them that the department is 

following CDC and public health protocols and taking appropriate measures to ensure the safety of 

all employees. 

 
7.   How do I know when the employee is to be allowed to return to work? 

 
Individuals who are excluded from employment under this protocol will not be allowed to return 

to work until either: 
 

 At least 72 hours after his/her fever is gone, other symptoms have improved, and at 

least 7 days have passed since symptoms first appeared. (Employee fever should be 

gone without the use of fever-reducing medicine.) 

 Fever is gone (without use of fever-reducing medicine), other symptoms have 

improved, and receipt of two negative tests in a row 24 hours apart. 

 
The employee is expected to return to work immediately once one of the above criteria 

has been met, unless otherwise directed by the department.  If he/she chooses to remain at home 

because still not feeling well, all regular City and departmental sick leave policies and procedures 

should be followed. 

 
8.   Should I call an employee at home to get information about his/her symptoms, or an update as 

to his/her health status? 

9.2.a

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 -
 E

m
p

lo
ye

e 
p

o
lic

y 
o

n
 C

o
vi

d
-1

9 
 (

49
08

 :
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 o
n

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

P
o

lic
y 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 C
O

V
ID

-1
9)



14 

 

 

      No.  Once the employee has been excluded, it is up to the employee and/or his/her health care 

provider to determine his/her ability to return to the workplace. 

 
If the employee voluntarily requests time off related to COVID-19 illness, he/she should follow all 

regular City sick leave policies and procedures, included calling in sick for each scheduled shift, 

unless a medical professional or health department personnel has removed the individual from work 

for an established period of time. 

 
9.   Is this a violation of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 

(HIPAA)? 

 
No.  HIPAA provides protection of personal health information.  It does not prohibit an employee 

from providing information to his/her employer.  It is the healthcare provider’s responsibility to 

obtain consent from the employee prior to releasing any protected health information. 

 
10. How is the employee who has been excluded from the work place to be compensated? 

 
Employees who are excluded from the work place under this policy can use sick or other accrued 

leave for all time away from work. Accrued leave time must be exhausted prior to taking leave 

without pay. The employee may also be eligible for Emergency Paid Sick Leave or Emergency 

Responder Sick Leave, or Emergency FMLA expansion coverage. 

 
11. What if the employee does not have any/enough sick leave accrued? 

 
Employees may use other paid leave benefits according to established City policies. Employees 

may also request an unpaid leave of absence.  City policies regarding pro-rated benefit 

accruals/contributions may apply for employees on unpaid leaves of absence. 

 

 

12. Can a healthy employee refuse to come to work, or perform job duties because of a belief that  

      by doing so, he or she would be at increased risk of catching COVID-19? 

 
No. If the employee refuses, he/she may face disciplinary action as a result of refusing to work. 

Each situation should be reviewed on a case-by-case basis in consultation with the City 

Administrator. 

 
13. Can an employee who is exposed to, or diagnosed with, COVID-19 file a Worker’s 

Compensation claim? 

 
If an employee becomes ill because of a direct workplace exposure, he/she may be eligible for 

Worker’s Compensation.  The supervisor should report the claim, and all other Worker’s 

Compensation protocol should be followed. 

 
14. What if an employee requests to work from home during the period of exclusion? 

 
An employee has been excluded from work because they are ill.  They should be encouraged to focus 

on their recovery and not work. 

9.2.a

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 -
 E

m
p

lo
ye

e 
p

o
lic

y 
o

n
 C

o
vi

d
-1

9 
 (

49
08

 :
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 o
n

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

P
o

lic
y 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 C
O

V
ID

-1
9)



15 

 

 

 
15. What if an employee requests to work from home either to avoid exposure, to care for sick 

family members or to care for dependent children when schools/daycares are closed during 

the pandemic? 

 
For many jobs, this is not possible.  For some jobs, especially in management, there are things that 

the employee can accomplish from home. The City must determine what is appropriate for each 

individual situation. 

 
16. What pay can an employee use for absences caused by child care needs because schools 

have been closed due to COVID-19? 

 
If an employee’s child is asymptomatic, any absences related to child care remain ineligible for sick 

leave usage.  The employee may use any paid leave other than sick leave for these absences, provided 

the absence is duly approved according to department rules.  Starting April 1, employees are able to use 

EFMLEA (Emergency Family Medical Leave Expansion Act) time to stay home with their child whose 

school or day care is closed due to COVID-19.  Please complete the COVID-19 Application for Leave 

of Absence. 

 

17. Can an employee receive FMLA because of COVID-19? 
 

Eligibility for FMLA will depend upon the severity of the symptoms and each individual situation.  

FMLA may be concurrently approved or designated in accordance with State and Federal laws and 

City of Merrill FMLA policy.  The employee is required to provide the appropriate medical 

certification to document the serious health condition of him/herself or a qualifying family member, 

and must give appropriate notice according to the laws and policy.   

 

18. During a COVID-19 outbreak can my supervisor cancel my vacation time off request that has  

      already been approved? 

 
Yes, your supervisor has the authority to cancel any pre-approved vacation request, especially in 

situations where there are serious staff shortages as a result of illness. 

 
19. Will my healthcare plan cover medical expenses associated with treatment for influenza? 

 
You will have the same coverage that is currently available for any emergency or 

non-emergency illness.  Deductibles and copays will apply.  Tests to diagnose COVID-19 should be 

covered 100%. 

 
20. What assistance is available to help me cope with the emotional impact of an influenza 

outbreak? 

 
The City of Merrill provides resources to help employees and eligible dependents cope with these and 

other types of life events through its Employee Assistance Program (EAP). The EAP provides 

confidential, short-term counseling at no cost to the employee. Aspirus EAS (Employee Assistance 

Services) Helpline: 715-847-2772 or 1-800-236-4457 

9.2.a

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 -
 E

m
p

lo
ye

e 
p

o
lic

y 
o

n
 C

o
vi

d
-1

9 
 (

49
08

 :
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 o
n

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

P
o

lic
y 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 C
O

V
ID

-1
9)



16 

 

 

 21. I missed work because I got sick with flu-like symptoms.  My pay is guaranteed at 

100% and I don’t have to use my balances, right? 

 
No.  The salary guarantee only protects employees whose Department Head assigned an alternate 

schedule which is less hours than their normal schedule.  However, you may qualify for Emergency 

Paid Leave.  Please complete the COVID-19 Application for 

Leave of Absence. 

 

22. I am home caring for my child because their school/day care is closed.  What do I do? 

 
First, make sure you notify your employer of your need to be absent according to your department’s 

call-in procedures.  Then complete the COVID-19 Application for Leave of Absence (attached) and 

provide it to the City Administrator. 

 

23. I already used my allotted amount of FMLA, but now I want to use my expanded 

FMLA benefits.  How do I do that? 

 
The Families First Coronavirus Response Act did not expand the amount of leave available to an 

employee.  If you have exhausted your FMLA leave, you are ineligible for more time off under the 

FMLA expansion.  If you only used a portion of your allotted FMLA leave, you may be eligible for 

the remainder of your time under the FMLA expansion.  Complete the COVID-19 Application for 

Leave of Absence and provide it to the City Administrator. 

 

24. How do I know if I am experiencing a substantially similar condition as COVID-19 and eligible 

for extra Paid Sick Leave? 

 
Good question! At this point, the Secretary of Health and Human Services, the Secretary of the 

Treasury and the Secretary of Labor have not specified any additional conditions under this portion of 

the law.  If they do, this policy will be updated and shared with employees. 

 

25. Do I get to stay home under Governor’s Evers Safer at Home order? 

 
Not necessarily.  Your Department Head or should have told you if you are a required employee, 

required remote employee, or non-required employee.  Only non- required employees and required 

remote employees are to stay home under the governor’s order, and required remote employees may 

be required to physically report to work for a portion of their normal shift. 

 
26. I have been reassigned to another department and I don’t feel safe with the new assignment.  

What do I do? 

 
Please share your safety concerns with your Department Head or City Administrator. The City of 

Merrill is only reassigning staff to duties they are able to safely perform. 

 
However, your reassignment will not be ended if your only concern regarding the new assignment is 

risk of exposure to COVID-19 unless you meet the following criteria: you are at higher risk for severe 

illness according to the CDC (https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/specific-groups/high-risk-

complications.html), if a member of your household is high risk, or you are the primary and regular 

caregiver for a high risk individual.  An employee who misrepresents themselves in response to those 

9.2.a

Packet Pg. 73

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 -
 E

m
p

lo
ye

e 
p

o
lic

y 
o

n
 C

o
vi

d
-1

9 
 (

49
08

 :
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 o
n

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

P
o

lic
y 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 C
O

V
ID

-1
9)

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/specific-groups/high-risk-complications.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/specific-groups/high-risk-complications.html


17 

 

 

questions in an effort to avoid reassignment will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including 

discharge. An employee who fails to report during his/her regular work hours, or refuses a work 

reassignment, may be subject to discipline up to and including discharge, and will not be eligible for 

pay during the time period where work was offered and available. 
 

27. If I am home with my child because his or her school or place of care is closed, or child care 

provider is unavailable, do I get paid sick leave, expanded family and medical leave, or 

both—how do they interact? 
 

 

You may be eligible for both types of leave, but only for a total of twelve weeks of paid leave. You 

may take both paid sick leave and expanded family and medical leave to care for your child whose 

school or place of care is closed, or child care provider is unavailable, due to COVID-19 related 

reasons. The Emergency Paid Sick Leave Act provides for an initial two weeks of paid leave. This 

period thus covers the first ten workdays of expanded family and medical leave, which are otherwise 

unpaid under the Emergency and Family Medical Leave Expansion Act unless you elect to use existing 

vacation, personal, holiday, or sick leave under your employer’s policy. After the first ten workdays 

have elapsed, you will receive 2/3 of your regular rate of pay for the hours you would have been 

scheduled to work in the subsequent ten weeks under the Emergency and Family Medical Leave 

Expansion Act. 

 
Please note that you can only receive the additional ten weeks of expanded family and medical leave 

under the Emergency Family and Medical Leave Expansion Act for leave to care for your child 

whose school or place of care is closed, or child care provider is unavailable, due to COVID-19 

related reasons. (https://www.dol.gov/agencies/whd/pandemic/ffcra-question 

9.2.a

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 -
 E

m
p

lo
ye

e 
p

o
lic

y 
o

n
 C

o
vi

d
-1

9 
 (

49
08

 :
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 o
n

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

P
o

lic
y 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 C
O

V
ID

-1
9)

https://www.dol.gov/agencies/whd/fact-sheets/56a-regular-rate


City of Merrill - WI Department of Corrections

City Hall - Second Floor Lease Renewal

Monthly Annual Sq. Ft.

Amount Amount Amount

Current Lease $5,778 $69,333 $15.35

Proposed 6/1/2020 $5,648 $67,770 $15.00

Difference ($130) ($1,563) ($0.35)

Annual

Monthly City Budget

With 1.75% Increase Amount Amount

6/1/21 - 5/31/22 $5,746 $68,462

6/1/22 - 5/31/23 $5,847 $69,660

6/1/23 - 5/31/24 $5,949 $70,879

6/1/24 - 5/31/25 $6,053 $72,119

6/1/25 - 5/31/26 $6,159 $73,381

State 2nd Floor Lease 2020-06-01 Revised: 4/6/2020

10.1.a

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

ea
se

 f
o

r 
C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e 

- 
D

.O
.C

.  
(4

90
6 

: 
L

ea
se

 a
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 P

ro
b

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 P
ar

o
le

 -
 C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e)



 

1 
 

 410-095  

GROSS LEASE 

THIS LEASE, made and entered into this _______ day of _______________, 2020, by and between, City of 

Merrill (the “Lessor”), whose address is 1004 East 1st Street, Merrill, Wisconsin 54452 and the STATE OF 

WISCONSIN, DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION (the “Lessee”); 

WITNESSETH, the parties hereto for the considerations hereinafter mentioned covenant and agree as follows: 

1. PREMISES.  Lessor hereby leases to Lessee and Lessee leases from Lessor the following (the “Premises”): 

Approximately 4,518 square feet of office space in Lessor’s building, together with all appurtenances and 
access to common areas, located at 1004 East 1st Street in the City of Merrill, Wisconsin (the “Building”), 
which Premises are further described in Exhibits A (aerial photo / site plan) & B (floor plan) attached.  

 
2. USE OF PREMISES.  Except as otherwise authorized in writing by Lessor, Lessee shall use the Premises as 

space for the Department of Corrections or such other agency that may be designated by Lessee 

(collectively, the “Tenant”). 

 
3. TERM.  The lease term hereunder shall begin on June 1, 2020 and end on May 31, 2025 (5 years).  In 

addition, the Lease includes two 5-year renewal options.  Note:  Lease Number 410-066 shall terminate upon 

the commencement date of this Lease.  

a) If the actual Commencement Date differs from the stated lease term beginning date, the Lessor and 

Lessee shall execute a ‘letter of addendum’ which shall designate the exact Rent Commencement 

Date/Lease Term Begin Date and the Termination Date of this Lease, such that it shall be a full 5-year 

term.  

b) Intentionally left blank. 

 
4. INITIAL TERM RENTAL.  The Lessee shall pay the Lessor rent for the Premises during the first year of the 

initial 5-year Lease term at the following rate:  The sum of Sixty-seven Thousand Seven Hundred Seventy 

And 00/100 Dollars ($67,770.00) per annum, in equal monthly installments of Five Thousand Six Hundred 

10.1.a

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

ea
se

 f
o

r 
C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e 

- 
D

.O
.C

.  
(4

90
6 

: 
L

ea
se

 a
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 P

ro
b

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 P
ar

o
le

 -
 C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e)



 

2 
 

Forty-seven And 50/100 Dollars ($5,647.50). The annual rental rate for the first and each subsequent year of 

the initial term shall be in accordance with the following schedule. Annual increases of 1.75% shall apply to 

Annual Rent. 

Initial Lease Term Rental Rate Schedule 

Begin Date End Date Annual Rent Monthly Rent 

June 1, 2020 May 31, 2021 $67,770.00  $5,647.50  
June 1, 2021 May 31, 2022 $68,955.98  $5,746.33  
June 1, 2022 May 31, 2023 $70,162.70  $5,846.89  
June 1, 2023 May 31, 2024 $71,390.55  $5,949.21  
June 1, 2024 May 31, 2025 $72,639.89  $6,053.32  

 

The annual rent throughout the entire lease term, including optional extensions, shall be payable in advance 

in monthly installments as shown above on the first day of each month, except for the month of July during 

which the monthly installment is not due until the 15th day. Said rental payments shall be made to Lessor at 

the address for notices hereinafter set forth.  

 

5. RENEWAL RENTALS.  Provided that the Lessee is not then in default, this Lease may, at the option of the 

Lessee, be renewed for two successive 5-year periods from and after June 1, 2025 subject to the availability 

of funds for the payment of rentals, upon the same terms and conditions herein specified, provided written 

notice be given to Lessor at least 60 days before the Lease would otherwise expire. The annual rental rate for 

the first and then each subsequent year of the renewal terms, if exercised, shall be in accordance with the 

following schedule. Annual increases of 1.75% shall apply to each year of the renewal term if exercised. 

If Exercised, First Renewal Term Rental Rate Schedule 

Begin Date End Date Annual Rent Monthly Rent 

June 1, 2025 May 31, 2026 $73,911.08  $6,159.26  
June 1, 2026 May 31, 2027 $75,204.53  $6,267.04  
June 1, 2027 May 31, 2028 $76,520.61  $6,376.72  
June 1, 2028 May 31, 2029 $77,859.72  $6,488.31  
June 1, 2029 May 31, 2030 $79,222.26  $6,601.86  

If Exercised, Second Renewal Term Rental Rate Schedule 
Begin Date End Date Annual Rent Monthly Rent 

10.1.a

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

ea
se

 f
o

r 
C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e 

- 
D

.O
.C

.  
(4

90
6 

: 
L

ea
se

 a
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 P

ro
b

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 P
ar

o
le

 -
 C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e)



 

3 
 

June 1, 2030 May 31, 2031 $80,608.65 $6,717.39 
June 1, 2031 May 31, 2032 $82,019.30 $6,834.94 
June 1, 2032 May 31, 2033 $83,454.64 $6,954.55 
June 1, 2033 May 31, 2034 $84,915.10 $7,076.26 
June 1, 2034 May 31, 2035 $86,401.11 $7,200.09 

 
 

 
6. ASSIGNMENTS, SUBLETTING.  Lessee shall not assign this Lease in any event, and shall not sublet the 

demised Premises, and will not permit the use of said Premises by anyone other than the Lessee, and the 

agents, contractors, grantors and grantees, and servants of the Lessee, without prior written approval of the 

Lessor, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

 
7. COVENANTS OF LESSOR.  Lessor hereby covenants and agrees with Lessee as follows: 

a) Lessor warrants that Lessee shall have quiet use and enjoyment of the Premises; that Lessor has 

complete interest, right in and title to the Premises so as to enable Lessor to enter into this Lease; and 

that the Premises is not encumbered in any way so as to hinder or obstruct Lessee’s proposed use 

thereof, including no encumbrance or obstruction due to existing easements, zoning ordinances or 

building restrictions. Lessor shall obtain a certificate of occupancy or any other authorizations required by 

local ordinance to regulations prior to Lessee’s occupancy.  

b) The Lessor shall duly carry out the various obligations and duties imposed upon it at the time and in the 

manner called for by this Lease. 

c) Lessor shall furnish during the term of this Lease the goods, services and other items listed on Schedule I 

attached hereto and incorporated by reference. 

d) Lessor shall be responsible for the costs of all improvements necessary to meet and maintain the 

standards and specifications set forth in Schedule I and Exhibits A and B. Lessor shall maintain, at 

Lessor’s expense, the Premises so as, to comply with all federal, state and local codes applicable to the 

Premises.  

10.1.a

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

ea
se

 f
o

r 
C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e 

- 
D

.O
.C

.  
(4

90
6 

: 
L

ea
se

 a
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 P

ro
b

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 P
ar

o
le

 -
 C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e)



 

4 
 

Lessor agrees to complete, at Lessee’s sole cost and expense, any reasonable improvements to the 

Premises which the Lessee requests to improve the health, safety and security of the Premises, which 

are in excess, of code requirements and not required by Schedule I. 

e) In connection, with the performance of work under this Lease, the Lessor agrees not to discriminate 

against any employee or applicant for employment because of age, race, religion, color, handicap, sex, 

physical condition, developmental disability as defined in s. 51.01(5), sexual orientation, or national origin. 

This provision shall include, but not be limited to, the following; employment, upgrading, demotion, or 

transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of 

compensation and selection for training, including apprenticeship. Except with respect to sexual 

orientation, the Lessor further agrees to take affirmative action to ensure equal employment opportunities.  

The Lessor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available for employees and applicants for 

employment, notices to be provided by the Lessee, setting forth the provisions of the non-discrimination 

clause. 

f) Pursuant to 2019 Wisconsin Executive Order 1, Lessor agrees it will hire only on the basis of merit and 

will not discriminate against any persons performing under a contract, subcontract or grant because of 

military or veteran status, gender identity or expression, marital or familial status, genetic information or 

political affiliation. 

g) Lessor is required to provide a written Affirmative Action Plan acceptable under Wisconsin Statutes and 

Administrative Code if the rent is fifty thousand dollars ($50,000) or more per year and the Lessor 

employs fifty (50) or more employees. The Lessor must have a plan on file or submit a plan for approval, 

within fifteen (15) working days after the execution of this Lease, to the Department of Administration, 

Division of Enterprise Operations, whose address and phone number are listed at the bottom of the 

enclosed Form DOA-3269.  Instructions and technical assistance in preparing the plan are available from 

the Department of Administration, Division of Enterprise Operations and will be forwarded to the Lessor 

upon presentation of State of Wisconsin Form DOA-3269 attached hereto. Failure to comply with the 

conditions of this Item may result in the Lease being declared “Null and Void,” the Lessor being declared 

“ineligible,” or the withholding of rental payment until such time, as the above cited plan is accepted.  

10.1.a

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

ea
se

 f
o

r 
C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e 

- 
D

.O
.C

.  
(4

90
6 

: 
L

ea
se

 a
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 P

ro
b

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 P
ar

o
le

 -
 C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e)



 

5 
 

h) The Lessor as part of this Lease certifies that to the best of its knowledge both the Premises and the 

Building of which the Premises are a part do not contain any asbestos bearing material which is unsafe or 

which is not encapsulated. If during the Lessee’s occupancy of the Premises such asbestos bearing 

material is found, and the Lessor has been notified by the Lessee that such asbestos bearing material 

exists, the Lessor shall within fourteen (14) days after receipt of such notice, be required to take such 

action as may be necessary to encapsulate or remove the asbestos bearing material. Upon determination 

that unsafe or un-encapsulated asbestos bearing material exists, the Lessee may at its option vacate the 

Premises until such time as the material has been encapsulated or removed to the satisfaction of the 

Lessee. If the Lessee vacates the Premises during the encapsulation or removal process, the Lessor 

shall reimburse the Lessee for all move related costs. No rent shall accrue to the Lessor during the period 

of time the Lessee is not in occupancy of the Premises. In the event the Lessor fails to encapsulate or 

remove the asbestos bearing material within the time specified, this Lease may be cancelled by the 

Lessee and the Lessor shall thereafter not have any claim against the Lessee on account, of the 

cancellation of this lease.  

i) The Lessor attests that space covered by this Lease is not owned by a state public official or state 

employee as defined in section 19.45, Wisconsin Statutes and Chapter ER-MRS 24 of the Wisconsin 

Administration Code, nor is the Lessor a business in which a state public official or state employee has 

any ownership, monetary or fiduciary interest. 

j) For the purposes of this Lease, “Hazardous Materials, Substances, or Air Pollutants” shall include, but not 

be limited to any, and all substances, materials, waste, or air pollutants determined currently or in the 

future as hazardous or capable of posing a risk of injury to health, safety, or property by any Federal, 

State, or local statute, law, ordinance, code, rule, regulation, order, or decree. The Lessor attests that the 

Premises are free of any hazardous materials, substances, or air pollutants as defined above, and the 

Lessor will now and forever after the termination of this Lease, hold Lessee harmless and indemnify the 

Lessee from and against any, and all claims, liability, damages or costs arising from or due to the 

presence of hazardous materials, substances, or air pollutants as defined above, except liability resulting 

from Lessee’s use and occupancy of the Premises.  

10.1.a

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

ea
se

 f
o

r 
C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e 

- 
D

.O
.C

.  
(4

90
6 

: 
L

ea
se

 a
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 P

ro
b

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 P
ar

o
le

 -
 C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e)



 

6 
 

If during the Lessee’s occupancy of the Premises such hazardous materials, substances, or air pollutants 

are found, the Lessor shall as soon as possible after receipt of notice take such action as may be 

necessary to render the Premises safe.  

Upon determination by the Lessee that unsafe hazardous materials, substances, or air pollutants as 

defined above affecting the Lessee’s quiet enjoyment of the Premises exists, the Lessee may vacate the 

Premises until such time, as the hazardous materials, substances, or air pollutants have been repaired or 

remediated to the satisfaction of the Lessee. If the Lessee vacates the Premises during the repair or 

remediation process, the Lessor shall reimburse the Lessee for all related or relocation costs and rent 

shall abate during the period of time the Lessee is not in occupancy of the Premises. In the event the 

Lessor fails to repair or remediate the hazardous materials, substances, or air pollutants as soon as 

practicable as determined by the Lessee, the Lease may by written notice to the Lessor be cancelled by 

the Lessee and the Lessor shall thereafter not have any claim against the Lessee due to the cancellation 

of this Lease.  

Lessor will immediately advise Lessee in writing of any actions or claims relating to any hazardous 

materials, substances, or air pollutants on the Premises. If the Lessor has conducted or conducts any 

testing for hazardous materials, substances, or air pollutants on the Premises before or during the term of 

the Lease, then the Lessor shall provide a copy of any test results to the Lessee. The Lessee, at its own 

expense, may also conduct such testing as it deems appropriate on the Premises.  

k) In the event of any water damage to the Premises and/or common areas, Lessor agrees to begin the 

process of addressing the damage within twelve (12) hours of discovery or notification, and shall cause 

any water damaged (saturated, water spotted and/or dirty) materials to be dry within forty-eight (48) hours 

of the time of discovery of such damage. If such materials are not completely dry by the end of the 48-

hour period, the Lessee may require that the saturated materials (i.e. carpet, drywall, ceiling tiles, etc.) 

shall be removed from the premises and immediately replaced with new materials of identical quality or 

better quality.  

l) Lessor agrees to provide prior notification and provision of Safety Data Sheets (SDS) if applicable to the 

Tenant on-site staff when any construction, renovation, maintenance, repairs, remodeling or cleaning 

10.1.a

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

ea
se

 f
o

r 
C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e 

- 
D

.O
.C

.  
(4

90
6 

: 
L

ea
se

 a
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 P

ro
b

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 P
ar

o
le

 -
 C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e)



 

7 
 

work will be done within the building of which the Premises are a part of by the Lessor, contractors or 

other representative of the Lessor. The project notification and SDS documents should be provided to the 

on-site staff no less than five (5) workdays before the anticipated start of the actual work.  

m) The default by Lessor of any covenant or agreement contained in any paragraph or provision of this 

Lease, shall constitute a material default of the Lease, and shall entitle the Lessee to terminate this lease, 

PROVIDED, that prior to such termination, the Lessee shall notify the Lessor in writing of the nature of the 

default and shall grant the Lessor a period of thirty (30) days from the date of service of such notice to 

remedy or cease such act of default, and upon such remedy or cessation by the Lessor within said thirty 

(30) days, the Lessee shall waive the right to terminate for such default. In the event the act of default is 

such that it cannot be remedied within said thirty (30) day period, the Lessee shall waive the right to 

terminate for such default if corrective actions are commenced within such period and diligently pursued 

to completion by the Lessor.  

n) Lessor shall be responsible for paying to taxing authority the real estate taxes and any assessments on 

the Premises.  

 
8. COVENANTS OF LESSEE.  Lessee hereby covenants and agrees with Lessor as follows: 

a) Lessee does hereby covenant, promise, and agree to pay the rent in the manner hereinbefore specified, 

and to duly comply with all other provisions of this Lease at the time and in the manner herein provided.  

b) At the expiration of this Lease or any renewal thereof, the Lessee will return the Premises to the Lessor in 

as good condition as they were at the time the Lessee went into possession, ordinary wear, damage by 

the elements and fire excepted. It is mutually agreed, in consideration of the rent to be paid and other 

conditions of this Lease, that the Lessee shall not be responsible for damage to the Premises by fire.  

c) The Lessee’s Tenant will not make or permit anyone to make any alterations, improvements or additions 

in or to the Premises, without the prior written consent of the Department of Administration, as Lessee, 

and the Lessor.  

d) The default by Lessee:  (a) If Lessee shall be late in the payment of any rent or any other sum of money 

payable by Lessee to Lessor and if Lessee shall fail to cure said late payment within (30) days after 

receipt of notice of said late payment from Lessor, or (b) if Lessee shall be late in the performance or 

10.1.a

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

ea
se

 f
o

r 
C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e 

- 
D

.O
.C

.  
(4

90
6 

: 
L

ea
se

 a
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 P

ro
b

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 P
ar

o
le

 -
 C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e)



 

8 
 

observance of any other agreement or condition in the Lease to be performed or observed and if Lessee 

shall fail to cure said late performance or observance within thirty (30) days after receipt of notice from 

Lessor of said late performance or observance (unless Lessee commences to cure said late performance 

or observance within (30) days after receipt of notice thereof and expedite the curing of the same to 

completion with due diligence), then, in any of said cases and without waiving any claims for breach of 

agreement, Lessor may send written notice to Lessee of the termination of the term of this Lease, and, on 

the fifth (5th) day next following the date of the sending of the notice, the term of this Lease shall 

terminate, Lessee hereby waiving all rights of redemption.  

e) Lessee agrees that any Improvements to the Premises made by Lessor for the benefit of Lessee shall be 

the property of Lessor. Such improvements exclude any of Lessee’s system furniture, conventional 

furniture and all other Lessee personal property.  

 
9. INSURANCE.  Lessor agrees to procure and maintain, during the term of this lease, property and casualty 

insurance for the building containing the Premises. Lessor also agrees to procure and maintain, during the 

term of this lease, commercial general liability insurance in the amount of not less than $1.0 million each 

occurrence and $2.0 million general aggregate. Under all conditions noted above, general aggregate limits 

are to apply on a per location basis. In addition, Lessor shall provide upon signing of the lease and thereafter 

annually, a Certificate of Insurance to Lessee evidencing such coverage by date of occupancy. When 

coverage requirements are $2.0 million or greater, Lessee shall also be named as additional insured. The 

State of Wisconsin Self-Funded Liability and Property Programs protect the Lessee. Wisconsin Statutes 

provide funds to pay property and liability claims.  

 
10. HOLD HARMLESS.  Lessor agrees to protect, indemnify and save the State of Wisconsin harmless from and 

against any, and all claims, and against any and all loss, cost, damage or expense, including without limitation 

reasonable attorneys’ fees, arising out of any negligent acts of Lessor its invitees or agents, or any failure of 

Lessor in any respect to comply with and perform all the requirements and provisions of this Lease. 

 

10.1.a

Packet Pg. 83

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

ea
se

 f
o

r 
C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e 

- 
D

.O
.C

.  
(4

90
6 

: 
L

ea
se

 a
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 P

ro
b

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 P
ar

o
le

 -
 C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e)



 

9 
 

11. MAINTENANCE.  The Lessor shall maintain the Premises in good repair and tenantable condition, and as 

required by s. 704.07, Wis. Stats., throughout the term of the Lease, except in case of damage arising from a 

willful act or the negligence of the Lessee’s agents or employees. For the purpose, of so maintaining the 

Premises, the Lessor reserves the right at reasonable times to enter and inspect the Premises and to make 

any necessary repairs thereto. 

 
12. DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION.  In the event the Premises are partially damaged or destroyed by fire or other 

casualty or happening such that Lessee may continue to use a part of the Premises, Lessor shall promptly 

repair such damage and restore the Premises to its condition immediately prior to said damage or destruction. 

In such event, the rental and any other obligations of Lessee payable hereunder shall abate proportionally by 

the ratio that the damaged area bears to the total area of the Premises. Should Lessor fail to complete said 

restoration within 60 days of the partial damage or destruction, Lessee may terminate this Lease.  

In the event the Premises are damaged or destroyed such that Lessee is unable to occupy the Premises 

(untenantable) without undue hardship and/or disruption of its business, Lessee may elect to terminate this 

Lease by providing Lessor written notice of such termination within 14 days after such damage or destruction, 

and, in that event, all rent and other obligations of the Lessee hereunder shall terminate as of the date of such 

damage or destruction. In the event the Premises are untenantable and Lessee does not elect to terminate 

this Lease, Lessor shall proceed immediately to rebuild and restore the Premises to its condition immediately 

prior to said damage or destruction. In the case of Lessee’s election not to terminate, all rent and other 

obligations of the Lessee hereunder shall abate from the date of untenantability until the date Lessee retakes 

possession of the Premises. In the event Lessor fails to complete the restoration within 120 days of the 

untenantability, Lessee may terminate this Agreement.  

 
13. NOTICES.  Notice in writing referred to herein shall not be construed to mean personal notice, but such notice 

shall be given in writing, by mail, by depositing the same in the post office or letter-box, in a postpaid 

envelope, addressed to the Lessor at Lessor’s last known address, and such notice shall be deemed to be 

given at the time when the same shall be thus mailed. Such notices provided hereunder shall be addressed 

as follows: 

10.1.a

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

ea
se

 f
o

r 
C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e 

- 
D

.O
.C

.  
(4

90
6 

: 
L

ea
se

 a
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 P

ro
b

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 P
ar

o
le

 -
 C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e)



 

10 
 

If to Lessor: Tom Hayden 
 City of Merrill 
 1004 East 1st Street 
 Merrill, Wisconsin 54452 
 

Rent sent to:  Same as above 

If to Lessee:  State Leasing Officer  
 Wisconsin Department of Administration 
 101 E. Wilson Street, 7th Floor  
 P.O. Box 7866 
 Madison, WI 53707-7866 
 

  
14. FUNDING.  The payment of rents under this Lease is subject to the availability of funds that may lawfully be 

used for such payment. As a result, the Lease does not constitute the contracting of public debt under Article 

VIII, Section 4 of the Wisconsin Constitution. The continuation of this Lease beyond the limits of the funds 

already available is contingent upon the future availability of funds to support the payment of rent for the 

programs housed in the facility covered by this Lease. In the event, such funding is not made available to the 

program or programs involved, the Lessee may at its option and upon sixty (60) days prior written notice to 

the Lessor, terminate this Lease. Use beyond the limits of the funds already available is contingent upon the 

future availability of funds.  

 
15. RIGHT TO LEASE ADJACENT SPACE.  Lessee may lease any available adjacent space at any time during 

the term of this Lease or renewal options. Improvements for such space will be of the same nature and quality 

as that of the space contained herein. Such additional space shall be made available under mutually 

agreeable terms, conditions, and rental rate as mutually agreed upon.  

 
16. BROKERS.  Lessor and Lessee represent and warrant to each other that they have had no dealings with any 

broker or agent in connection with this Lease and Lessor agrees to pay and hold Lessee harmless from any 

claims made by anyone for any compensation, commissions and charges claimed with respect to this Lease 

or the negotiations thereof.  

 

10.1.a

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

ea
se

 f
o

r 
C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e 

- 
D

.O
.C

.  
(4

90
6 

: 
L

ea
se

 a
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 P

ro
b

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 P
ar

o
le

 -
 C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e)



 

11 
 

17. HOLDING OVER.  If Lessee holds over after the term hereof, with or without the express written consent of 

Lessor, such tenancy shall be from month to month only, with no renewal hereof or an extension for any 

further term, and in such case basic monthly rent, excluding amortization, shall be payable at the rate during 

the last month of the term hereof. Such month-to-month tenancy shall be subject to every other term, 

covenant and agreement contained herein. 

 
18. SUBORDINATION.  This Lease shall be subordinate to any and all mortgages hereafter placed against the 

Premises by Lessor, provided that any such mortgage (or a separate written agreement, in recordable form, 

from the mortgagee in favor of and delivered to the Lessee) contains provisions to the effect that, so long as 

this Lease shall remain in force, in any action to foreclose the mortgage, Lessee will not be made a party 

defendant, that Lessee’s possession of the Premises will not be disturbed and that Lessee’s Leasehold estate 

will not be affected, impaired, or terminated by any such action or proceeding or by any judgement, order, 

sale or conveyance made or rendered therein or pursuant thereto, so long as (at the time of commencement 

of such action or foreclosure proceeding or during the pendency thereof) Lessee is not in default under the 

terms, covenants, and conditions of this Lease beyond any grace period provided in this Lease for curing 

same.  

 
19. FORCE MAJEURE.  In the event either party hereto shall be delayed or hindered in or prevented from the 

performance of any act required hereunder by reason of strikes, lockouts, labor troubles, inability to procure 

materials, failure of power, riots, insurrection, war, acts of God, inclement weather, or other reason beyond 

that party’s reasonable control, then performance of such act shall be excused for the period of the delay and 

the period for the performance of any such act shall be extended for a period equivalent to the period of such 

delay.  

 
20. EMINENT DOMAIN.  In the event the entire Premises shall be appropriated or taken under the power of 

eminent domain by any public or quasi-public authority, this Lease shall terminate and expire as of the date of 

such taking, and Lessee shall then be released from any liability thereafter accruing under this Lease.  

10.1.a

Packet Pg. 86

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

ea
se

 f
o

r 
C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e 

- 
D

.O
.C

.  
(4

90
6 

: 
L

ea
se

 a
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 P

ro
b

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 P
ar

o
le

 -
 C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e)



 

12 
 

In the event a portion of the Premises shall be so appropriated or taken and the remainder of the property 

shall not be suitable for the use then being made of the property by the Lessee, or if the remainder of the 

property is not one undivided parcel of property, Lessee shall have the right to terminate this Lease as of the 

date of the taking on giving to Lessor written notice of termination within thirty (30) days after Lessor has 

notified Lessee in writing that the property has been so appropriated or taken.  

In the event of the termination of this Lease by reason, of the total or partial taking of the Premises by eminent 

domain, then in any such condemnation proceedings, Lessor and Lessee shall be free to make claim against 

the condemning or taking authority for the amount of any damage done to them, respectively, as a result of 

the condemning or taking.  

 
21. CONSTRUCTION OF IMPROVEMENTS.  Intentionally left blank.  

 
22. LESSEE COSTS.  Lessee shall be responsible for the monthly phone and data costs for the Premises.  

 
23. CAPTIONS.  The item captions contained herein are for convenience only and do not define, limit, or 

construe the contents of such items, paragraphs, or sections. 

 

24. AUTHORIZATION, BINDING EFFECT.  This Lease, together with all amending instructions subsequent 

thereto (collectively, the “Lease”), is not valid or effective for any purpose until approved by the Governor or 

his delegate, the Secretary of the Department of Administration, and no work is authorized until the Lease is 

fully executed.  

 
25. WAIVER.  The rights and remedies of either party under this Lease, as well as those provided or accorded by 

law, shall be cumulative, and none shall be exclusive of any other rights or remedies hereunder or allowed by 

law. A waiver by either party of any breach or breaches, default or defaults, of the other party hereunder shall 

not be deemed or construed to be a continuing waiver of such breach or default nor as a waiver of or 

permission, expressed or implied, for any subsequent breach or default. 

10.1.a

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

ea
se

 f
o

r 
C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e 

- 
D

.O
.C

.  
(4

90
6 

: 
L

ea
se

 a
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 P

ro
b

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 P
ar

o
le

 -
 C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e)



 

13 
 

26. CHOICE OF LAW.  This Lease shall be governed by and construed and interpreted in accordance with the 

laws of the State of Wisconsin. 

 
27. EXECUTED LEASE.  This Lease when fully executed shall be binding upon the respective heirs, executors, 

administrators, successors, and assigns of the parties hereto. 

 

28. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.  Intentionally left blank. 

 
29. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Lease constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to its 

subject matter and constitutes and supersedes all prior agreements, representations and understandings of 

the parties, written or oral.  

 

  

10.1.a

Packet Pg. 88

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

ea
se

 f
o

r 
C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e 

- 
D

.O
.C

.  
(4

90
6 

: 
L

ea
se

 a
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 P

ro
b

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 P
ar

o
le

 -
 C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e)



 

14 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto subscribed their names as of the date of the last signature 

below.  

LESSOR: 

City of Merrill 

 
 
By: _______________________________________________ 
 
 _______________________________________________ 
 Print Name and Title 

Dated: ____________________________________________ 
 

  

LESSEE: 

State of Wisconsin, Department of Administration 

 
By: ______________________________________________ 
 
 CHRIS PATTON 
 DEPUTY SECRETARY 
 DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION 
 
 
Dated: ___________________________________________ 

 
 
 
File No. 410-095    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10.1.a

Packet Pg. 89

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

ea
se

 f
o

r 
C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e 

- 
D

.O
.C

.  
(4

90
6 

: 
L

ea
se

 a
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 P

ro
b

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 P
ar

o
le

 -
 C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e)



 

15 
 

Schedule I 
 
The Lessor, at Lessor’s cost, shall furnish to the Lessee during the term of this Lease, as part of the rental 
consideration, the following: 

 
1. The environmental control system shall maintain a comfortable humidity level and temperatures for an 

estimated use of 60 hours per week as follows:  
 

  Summer  Winter 
  76 Degrees (+/- 2o) 70 Degrees (+/- 2o)  

50% Humidity Level (+/- 10%) 25% Humidity Level (+/- 5%) 
 
  The temperature range during unoccupied times (generally 6 p.m. to 6 a.m.) may be varied 

by up to +/- 10o of the above temperatures. 
 

2. Provide, maintain and service heating, air conditioning, plumbing and ventilating equipment as per 
manufacturers and/or installers recommendations. 

 Must be compliant with State of Wisconsin Administrative Codes SPS 363 and 364, and ASHRAE 62.1-
2016, in addition to all other applicable Federal, State and local codes.  Relative to ventilation codes, where 
SPS 364 and ASHRAE 62.1-2016 conflict, apply SPS 364 to existing HVAC and ASHRAE 62.1-2016 to 
new HVAC equipment selections ensuring in all circumstances, that HVAC ventilation requirements will 
always meet or exceed State of Wisconsin Administrative Code SPS 364 minimum guidelines. 

 Lessor shall meet the following requirements:  

a) All new HVAC units and equipment installed shall be high-efficiency type; gas-fired heating is required 
in all new construction. 

b) All rooms shall have sufficient air movement to meet the Wisconsin code for air exchanges and CFM for 
office space and have adequate zoning in order to maintain the humidity and temperatures as listed 
above. 

c) HVAC supply and return system “as is”. 
d) All new exterior walls and ceilings must meet minimum insulation code requirements. 
e) Provide perimeter heating for exterior walls if required to meet seasonal set-points. 
f) Provide space heating for airlocks and lobbies, if necessary. 
g) Change air-handling equipment filters quarterly. 
h) Provide automatic temperature adjustment capability for unoccupied modes. 
i) Provide separate venting/fans for restrooms. 
j) Placement of thermostats “as is”.      

 
3. Install and maintain fire extinguishers according to any governmental building code and Underwriters 

Laboratories (UL) recommendations. 
 

4. Provide safe drinking water with hot and cold running water for restrooms, counter sinks and janitorial 
facilities.  Such drinking water shall meet minimum State of Wisconsin Drinking Water Quality Standards. 
 

5. Lighting “as is”. 
 

6. Provide Water and Sewer & Heat and Air conditioning. 
 

10.1.a

Packet Pg. 90

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

ea
se

 f
o

r 
C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e 

- 
D

.O
.C

.  
(4

90
6 

: 
L

ea
se

 a
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 P

ro
b

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 P
ar

o
le

 -
 C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e)



 

16 
 

7. Provide electricity for lights and other electrical equipment necessary for operation of the Premises. 
 

8. Furnish, install and replace during the term of this Lease and any extension thereof, light bulbs, fluorescent 
tubes, starters, ballasts or transformers. 
 

9. All demised and common areas of the facility and exterior areas, including parking, utilized under this lease, 
including restrooms and any elevator(s) must meet all requirements of new construction for 
accessibility, health and safety standards in compliance with and in accordance with Wisconsin 
Administrative Code, Chapters SPS 332, 361-365, and the ANSI A117.1.  ANSI Regulations will take 
precedence over Wisconsin Administrative Codes, except when such codes shall be equal to or exceed the 
ANSI Regulations.  All elevators shall meet the Wisconsin Administrative Codes, SPS 318 and SPS 362 
and ANSI A117.1. 
 

10. Furnish building occupancy or use permit(s) if required. 
 

11. Provide walk-off mats at each entrance.  Replace as needed when worn. 
 

12. Furnish all necessary janitorial and maintenance equipment and supplies for restrooms including soap, 
towels and toilet tissue. 
 

13. Lessor is to provide all services, supplies and equipment required to clean and keep clean all areas of the 
building, sidewalks, parking areas, and grounds.  This includes, but is not limited to, the plowing and 
removal of snow, ice removal and salting, removal of trash, pest control and the proper disposal of 
recyclable materials separated by Lessee.  Proper disposal of materials shall comply with sections 16.15(3) 
and 287 Wis. Stats., which require recycling the following items: aluminum containers, corrugated paper or 
other container board, foam polystyrene packaging, glass containers, magazines, newspaper, office paper, 
plastic containers, steel containers, and waste tires.  Lessor shall provide a central collection area and 
separate collection containers as require for the deposit of all such recyclable and non-recyclable waste 
generated at the leased premises.  Lessor and Lessee further agree to comply with all applicable municipal 
recycling requirements adopted under section 287.13, Wis. Stats. 

 

14. Lessee shall retain the right to do background checks at any time and reserves the right to approve or 
disapprove permission to enter the Premises of any vendor, contractor or others. 

 

15. Janitorial Services: The following is a list of required activities to be performed at least as often as indicated.  
While this list may omit some minor activities, it is the intent of this list to promote a building with a High 
Standard of Cleanliness.  

AREA AND FREQUENCY INDICATION: 
 

DAILY  
 
a) All Common Areas (Entrances/ Hallways/ Stairways/Snack or Break Area/Janitor 

Closet/Storeroom/etc.) - Clean glass in doors and metal framework; Empty/clean exterior 
ashtrays, waste containers and replace can liners; Sweep, mop floor, steps, landings, etc.;  
Vacuum carpet and walk-off mats and remove spots/stains; Clean, de-scale and polish water 
fountains; and spot clean walls and doors. 

b) Restrooms - Clean and disinfect dispensers, sinks, toilets, urinals and polish bright work. 

10.1.a

Packet Pg. 91

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

ea
se

 f
o

r 
C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e 

- 
D

.O
.C

.  
(4

90
6 

: 
L

ea
se

 a
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 P

ro
b

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 P
ar

o
le

 -
 C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e)



 

17 
 

c) Office Areas - Empty waste containers and replace can liners, if used; Dust and/or damp  wipe 
accessible furnishings, fixtures, vents and sills; Spot clean doors, walls and sidelights; 
Sweep/mop floors; and vacuum carpet and remove spots/stains.  

 
ONCE-WEEKLY 
 
a) Restrooms - Clean inside toilet bowls and urinals; and damp wipe walls. 
b) Offices - Common Areas - Dust and/or damp wipe furnishings, moldings, handrails, fixtures, etc.  

Clean/disinfect and polish brightwork.   
c) Offices - Vacuum upholstered furniture; and edge-vacuum carpet 

 

SEMI-ANNUAL 
 
a) Resilient/Hard floor Areas - Strip, seal and refinish floors in spring and fall.  
b) Carpet Areas - Wet extract carpet and apply soil retardant in spring and fall.  
c) Restrooms - Wash walls, ceilings, doors and partitions in winter and summer. 
d) Windows - Wash windows and storms both inside and outside and vacuum screens in spring and 

fall.  
e) Light Fixtures - Clean fixtures and diffusers. 
f) Air Vents - Clean supply air diffusers and return air grilles. 

 
16. Provide sufficient onsite parking, which is understood by the parties hereto to include 24/7 parking for staff 

and client owned vehicles. 
 

17. Provide snow and ice control and removal. Snow and ice will be removed from designated walking surfaces 
on Lessor controlled parking lots and sidewalks on building grounds by 6:30 AM each working day and 9:00 
AM on non-working days.  These walk areas shall be maintained in a reasonably slip resistant condition and 
passable for people with disabilities (i.e. individuals who use walkers, canes, crutches, wheelchairs, etc.).  
Walking surfaces will be maintained snow and ice free during working hours.  Particular attention shall be 
paid during on-going snowfalls, ice storms or when melting snow and ice re-freezes on walking surfaces.  
Parking lots shall be cleared within 24 hours of a 2-inch or greater snowfall (or sooner if weather permits). 
 
In the event that the Lessor fails to remove the snow and ice from the leased facility in accordance with the 
terms of the paragraph above, the Lessee may cause the same to be done and deduct the cost of such 
snow and ice removal from the rent due the Lessor. 
 
Lessee’s removal of snow and ice shall not release Lessor of liability or obligation under the provisions of 
this lease or any law or regulation. 
 

18. Lessor agrees to construct and/or remodel and equip the building in accordance with State and local 
building codes, in accordance with mutually agreed upon plans attached hereto. 
 

19. Upon Lessee’s execution of the first renewal option under paragraph 5 of the Lease, Lessor will at Lessor’s 
cost, repaint and re-carpet the Premises.  Lessor shall complete the repainting and re-carpeting by a 
mutually agreed upon date, but not later than twelve (12) months from the date of Lessee’s execution of the 
first renewal option.  Lessor at Lessor’s sole cost is responsible for moving Tenant’s furniture and 
equipment to accommodate the repainting and re-carpeting of the Premises. Carpet and paint color 
selections must be mutually agreed to by Lessor and Lessee, in writing.   
 
If for any reason the Premises is not re-carpeted and/or repainted as provided herein, the Lessor shall 
provide the Lessee with a rent credit for these avoided costs.  The credit shall be equal to the sum of $5.00 

10.1.a

Packet Pg. 92

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

ea
se

 f
o

r 
C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e 

- 
D

.O
.C

.  
(4

90
6 

: 
L

ea
se

 a
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 P

ro
b

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 P
ar

o
le

 -
 C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e)



 

18 
 

per square foot for re-carpeting and $1.50 per square foot for repainting, subject to annual increases of 
1.75% beginning with the second year of the initial lease term.  In the event, that Lessor partially re-carpets 
or repaints the Premises, as provided herein, the credit shall be reduced by any actual costs incurred.  This 
credit shall be applied against Lessee’s monthly rent beginning in the thirteenth month following Lessee’s 
execution of the renewal option under paragraph 5 of the Lease.   Lessor may not choose on its own to not 
perform the above work in order to avoid Lessor’s obligation.  The credit calculation above does not limit 
Lessor’s cost of this work. 
 

20. Provide the Premises with a fire alarm and detection system that complies with all State building codes, 
International building code (IBC) and Local building codes.  In the event the Premises are not required to 
have a fire alarm and detection system by any code, Lessor shall install and maintain a fire detection 
system consisting of automatic detection (heat and smoke detectors), audio/visual notification devices and 
pull stations in accordance with the National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) under NFPA 72 and 
National Electric Code NEC 760.  The fire alarm and detection system shall be inspected, maintained and 
tested in accordance with NFPA 72, by licensed contractors and fully documented.  Documentation shall be 
made available to Lessee, within ten (10) days of Lessee’s written request. 
 

21. In the event the Lessor does not furnish the aforementioned services and items in this Schedule or the 
demised Premises are un-tenantable for any other reason which is not due to the negligence of the Lessee, 
the Lessee may provide such services and items at its own expense and deduct these expenses from rental 
payments, provided Lessee notifies Lessor thirty (30) days in advance of any deduction, and provides an 
itemized statement listing the services and items not being furnished. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10.1.a

Packet Pg. 93

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

ea
se

 f
o

r 
C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e 

- 
D

.O
.C

.  
(4

90
6 

: 
L

ea
se

 a
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 P

ro
b

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 P
ar

o
le

 -
 C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e)



 

19 
 

EXHIBIT A – AERIAL PHOTO / SITE PLAN 
 
 
 

 
 
 

NOTE:  Orange area indicates where State of Wisconsin vehicles are allowed to park and blue areas indicate 
where State of Wisconsin employees are allowed to park. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10.1.a

Packet Pg. 94

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

ea
se

 f
o

r 
C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e 

- 
D

.O
.C

.  
(4

90
6 

: 
L

ea
se

 a
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 P

ro
b

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 P
ar

o
le

 -
 C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e)



 

20 
 

EXHIBIT B – FLOOR PLAN 
 

 

10.1.a

Packet Pg. 95

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

ea
se

 f
o

r 
C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e 

- 
D

.O
.C

.  
(4

90
6 

: 
L

ea
se

 a
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 P

ro
b

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 P
ar

o
le

 -
 C

it
y 

H
al

l s
p

ac
e)



11.1.a

Packet Pg. 96

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 a
d

ju
st

m
en

t 
re

q
u

es
t 

fo
r 

st
re

et
 li

g
h

ti
n

g
  (

48
92

 :
 C

o
n

si
d

er
 b

u
d

g
et

 a
m

en
d

m
en

t 
to

 a
p

p
ro

ve
 $

70
,0

00
 f

o
r 

st
re

et
 li

g
h

ti
n

g
)



12.1.a

Packet Pg. 97

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

49
05

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



12.1.a

Packet Pg. 98

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

49
05

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



12.1.a

Packet Pg. 99

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

49
05

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



12.1.a

Packet Pg. 100

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

49
05

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



12.1.a

Packet Pg. 101

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

49
05

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



12.1.a

Packet Pg. 102

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

49
05

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



12.1.a

Packet Pg. 103

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

49
05

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



12.1.a

Packet Pg. 104

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

49
05

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



12.1.a

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

49
05

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



12.1.a

Packet Pg. 106

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

49
05

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



12.1.a

Packet Pg. 107

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

49
05

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



12.1.a

Packet Pg. 108

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

49
05

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



12.1.a

Packet Pg. 109

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

49
05

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



12.1.a

Packet Pg. 110

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

49
05

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)


	Agenda Packet
	1. Call to Order
	1. Roll Call

	2. Silent Prayer 
	3. Pledge of Allegiance
	4. Roll Call
	5. Public Comment Period
	6. Minutes of previous Common Council meeting(s):
	1. 4903 : Minutes of March 10, 2020 meeting
	a. 2020-03-10 Council Minutes


	7. Financial Reports:
	1. 4904 : Reveune & Exprense for the period ending March 31, 2020
	a. Revenue & Expense - March 2020

	2. 4902 : Review and discuss 2019 Room Tax Reports
	a. Room Tax-Tourism 2019

	3. 4909 : Fiscal Status Report - Capital
	a. Fiscal Status - 2020 Capital


	8. General Agenda Items:
	1. 4900 : Employee Years of Service Recognition:
	4901 : Gregory D. Hartwig, 30 years (Police Department)

	9. Mayor's Proclamations:
	1. 4907 : Proclamation on state of emergency
	a. Proclamation - State of Emergency

	2. 4908 : Proclamation on Employee Policy related to COVID-19
	a. Proclamation - Employee policy on Covid-19


	10. Board of Public Works:
	1. 4906 : Lease agreement with Probation and Parole - City Hall space
	a. Lease for City Hall space - D.O.C.


	11. Personnel and Finance Committee:
	1. 4892 : Consider budget amendment to approve $70,000 for street lighting
	a. Budget adjustment request for street lighting


	12. Placing Committee Reports on File:
	1. 4905 : File Committee Reports
	a. Committee Reports


	13. Ordinances:
	4898 : None.

	14. Resolutions:
	4899 : None.

	15. Mayor's Communications
	16. Adjournment

	Appendix
	6.1.a · 2020-03-10 Council Minutes
	7.1.a · Revenue & Expense - March 2020
	7.2.a · Room Tax-Tourism 2019
	7.3.a · Fiscal Status - 2020 Capital
	9.1.a · Proclamation - State of Emergency
	9.2.a · Proclamation - Employee policy on Covid-19
	10.1.a · Lease for City Hall space - D.O.C.
	11.1.a · Budget adjustment request for street lighting
	12.1.a · Committee Reports


